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TRRMS - as follows:

Will give lease and bond on all or any part of my holdings,
Am holding the GREEN MONSTER group of 42 patented and 12
unpatented claims at $25,000,00 on easy terms. Or, ten
thousand dollars cash, on terms, and 5%,interest in the
property.

In case of a lease and bond I would expect ten per cent down.
In case of just a lease I would expect a ten per cent royalty.
I would reserve the grazing right to the above, on account of

protecting my water right. I am having it leased out for
four years, at a dollar & year.



¥ .

g I am the outright owner of 9 patented miniag claie

in the VERDE DE TRICT, and e ;

0, | - éxpect to have clear 7 .
to the BGADSDEN group of 43 patented claims befp s
The GREEN MONSTER group consists of 42 L
12 unpatented claims, including the COP%E%BQJ’
SILVER PLATE and SOUTH PLATT claims.

gggulastTghree claims are the "key" to {ngggggkmogﬁghgere

AP . ey were owned by the late S« h me
hot PArt of the GRERN MONSTER coprmp, - 'TANY et o
that company was in operation, Org‘the last 40 yea}s.
and on, from these three claims, ndred feet, and there
The deepest workings are about " ik ek,

is a lot of mill ore in sight.

copper, gold and silver,

fwo shipments of ore, carryin'laim this year, by & lessee.

have been made from the- CLIW ©

I have a few claims lessegOut, including the GALVESTON
claim where the lessee z;gwk:an 18 inch véin. This vein
carries no copper, only gold and silver. About an ounce
of gold to the ton. 4 couple of weeks ago the lessee
shipped 31 toms, part of it from this vein and part from
an adjoining elaim, and the net smelter returns amounted

to $667,00.

A lot of ore has been shipped from the GRAND BOUNCE claim
in timee past.

On the LITTLE JOE c¢laim, it is possible to pan gold.

Lately 1 gave a prospector permission to go out and prospect
on my ground. After a few_days he came back and told me
thet he had struck some ore /éast center end of the SOUTH
PLATT claim. He struck it within a foot from the surface.
It is @ yellow gossan and the first two feet sampled about
five dollars to the ton in gold, silver and copper. Since
that it has improved, and it looks like he will be shipping
ore sooun.

The GREEN wONSTER COPPER COMPANY sank a 900-foot shaft on

the line between the BRAD and the IRON CAP mxamims unpatented
claims, and did about 4000 feet of drifting, raising and i
crose-cutting. All this was away from the main mineral
showing.

The Phelps Dodge holdings are all colored red on this map,
while my holdings are colored yellow. The various, little
gircles indicate ore showings.

Daily shipents of ore are taking place from the RQUATCR and
the COPPER CHIEF, by lessee. (To Clarkdale Smelter).

June &8th. 1940. JOE LARSON.
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IN THE UNTTED STATES LAND OFFICE AT PHOENIX, ARIZONA,
BEFORE THE RGISTER

UNITED STATES?
Plaintiff,

Involving the RADIORE COPPER NOs. 3
and 4 Lode Mining Claims, within the
Verde Mining District, Prescott
Fational Forest. Contest No. 8926
Serial No. O78722; M.S. No. 4201

Ve and

Involving the BLOW OUT No. 2 Lode Mining
Claim, within the Verde Mining District,
Prescott National Porest. Contest No.
8957; Serial No. 079008; M.S. 4215

JOE LARSON,
Jerome, Apizona,

De fendant.

SPTIPULTION

IT IS STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties
hereto that the oral testimony and proceedings taken and had
at the hearing in the above entitled cause before L. 0. Tucker,
notary public, 2t his office, in thé County Court House,

. Prescott, Arizona, on October 1llth, 1939, at 10:00 o'clock

A. M., may be taken down ih short hand by said L. 0. Tucker,
stenographer, and by him afterwards transcribed, and that the
transcribed record, when sworn to by said stenographer as
being a full, true and correct record of all the testimony
and proceedings taken and had at said hearing, shall be
received and considered in all respects as if the witnesses
testifying at said hesring and subscribed the testimony res-
pectively given by them, the signatures of said witnesses

being specifically waived.



IT IS FURTHER STIPULATED that the said hearing be
adjourned from the County Court Houase to the offices of
Favour & Baker, Prescottd, Arizbna, and the proceedings
continued there with :the same force and effect as if taken
in the County Court House.

I7T IS FURTHER STIPULATED that the testimhﬂy to be
introduced at said proceedings, will be apﬁlioable to
both proceadihgs and the two contests sljall be tried as
one proceeding. !

17 IS FURTHER STIPULATED that Mr. L. O. Tucker,
before whom the testimony is taken, may file his affidavit
as a stenographer, having been sworn before Miss Vera 7035,.

notary public, Prescott, Arizona.

Signed:

Attorney for Protestant, United
©  States Forest Service.

Signed e
Attorneys for Protestee, Joe
Larson.




Mr. Crawford: Call lir. Larson.

Whereupon,
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JOE LARSOHN, the protestee, is called as a witness
in his own behalf and, having been first duly sworn, is
emamined and testifies as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

(By Mr. Crawford) Your name is Joe Larson?
Yes, Sir.
And you are the applicant for the patent in these proceedings?
I am.

Covering Radiore claims numbers three and four?

yes.
Where do you reside lir. Larson?®

In Jerome, Arizona
How long have you lived there?

Since December, 1898.
And what has been your business or occupation dnring that time?
I have followed mining and prospecting.

"And you have considerable knowledge of mining conditions
in the Verde District, have youn not?

I have followed that right along.
You have bought and sold properties there, have you not? .
Yes I have

And you have been interested in various mining ventures
in that district over that period of years, have you not?

Yes.

And you nave done considerable mining yourself?
Yes, 1 have

You hawe done actual mining work yourself?y

Yes

I mean you have handled a pick, shovel, drill end single



Jack, hav_ you?
A I have éunk many shafts as well as driven tunnels.

Q@ Tell us of the experience you have had as a mining man
in the Verde District, ir. Larson. ‘

A Well, I have been a foreman for different parties. I
have been president of &8 company. I was instrumental in
getting the C. & 4. Company interested in the district.
and many others.

Q@ Are you familiar with the United Verde mine, now owned
by the Phelps lodge Corporation?

A Yes, 1 worked there in 1898,

And are you familiar with the Little DLaisy, the United
Verde Extension Mining Company?

A Yes, I anm,

You understand the unsture of the ore bodies and the country
rock in both of those mines, do you not?

A Tes,

Q@ Are you familiar with the workings of the Verde Central mine?
A Yes.

4 And you understand the formation there?

I4 I do. - |

Q@ And you are familiar with the Eopper Chief mine, are.you not?
A, Yes. '

Q And thg Cliff mine?

A Yes.

Q@ And the Green lionster?

A I own the Cliff and the Green Monster mine now.

@ You now own the Cliff and Green lMonster mines?

A Yes.

Q@ And you are familiar with the work that has been done at

the Equator mine, are you not?

=

Yes.

Q@ Then 1 take it you are more or less familiar with the mires
in that area that have produced are and are now producing
ore?



A
Q

A

o oo oo

o b o b

o

o B oo b

i am.

Whaf can you say about the nature of what we might call
the mineralization belt in the Verde District?

The mineralization belt in the Verde District extends from
the United Verde & little north beyond the Copper Chief,
The formation is mostly greenstone and schist and guartsz
porphyry, and where you have greenstone and quartz pore
phyry you generally get some ore. And if you havé some
iron gossan and quartz schist you are pretty sure of get-
ting ore.

‘You base that upon your own knowledge?

yes, and experience.
Experience you have had in the Verde D{i strict?

Yes.

Where is the Copper Chief mine with resvect to your prop-
erty? And when you speak of distance, speak of them in
an air line. .

It is a little less than a mile fro mine.

In which direction is i%?

It is in a southerly direction from my property.

With respect to the town of Jerome the Radiore claims
numbers thwee and four and the Blowout number two lie
between the toem of Jerome and the Copper Chie £ mine,
do they not?

They do.

And with respect to the town of Jerome, how far in an
air line are they from Jerome?

Two miles of a little overe.

And how far in an air line are they from the Greem
lionste r?

It almost joins on it.
And from the Ciiff?
From the C1iff it is about three thousand feet I should say.

When you speak of the mineralization there I believe you

- 8aid that where you find greenstone and porphyry, you mean

on the contact zones between those formations, do you not?

ies, There is a contact that runs from the lower fault



up to th J1iff and Green lionster ar the Green lMonster
Extension, and there is some pretty good ore on the
Green Monster Extenslion.

G And the Green lMonster Extension SB: whe re?

It may be close tc the end line but there is a good showing.

e

Q The end line on the Green lonster?

A The Green Monster and the 3xten8ion. two claims owned
by the FPhelps Dodge. Then it goes along the Cliff toward
the Radiare.

Q And how far would that be on an air line from the Radiore

~ eclaim?

A On the map you oan tell just exactly how fear it is. It
is about thwo thousand feet, I guess. It is something like
that.

@ How long have you been familiar with these particular
olaims, the Blowout and the Hadiore number two?

A Since about 1917. ‘

Q You have been closely connected with them?

A TYes.

Q@ And you have had an interest in them, have you not?

A I bought in some and located a big group and optloned it
to the Radiore Rompany of Los 4ngeles. Prank B. Amsted
was president. He was the head of it, and H. E. Olund
was the chief engineer for the company.

Q You optioned it to them?

Yes . ‘ .

Q@ Did they do anything in the way of prospecting and devel-
oping the claims? { : '

A4 The contract provided they had to keep one man'working
right along and pay him &ix dollars a day.

@ What else did they do?

Well, they had this radiore with electricity and I
believe you have got-~ Mr. Reber I bell ve has a pamphlet
that will explain a good deal of it.

B In order to shortam it up, the Radiore had an option upon
your claims, d4id they not?

A Yes, .

Q@ And they were also the owners of intruments which made



electrical conductivity determinations of mining claims,
were they uot? '

A They were.

Q@ And as part of that werk they were able to discower whether
or not sulphide bodies were within five hundred feet of
their instrument, were they not?

A That is what they claimed it would do.

Did they do geophysical work with this electrical ap-
paratus on those coaims?

A Yes. They were there from, I think, the latter part of
July or the first of August, 1987, off and on most of
the time until 1928, pretty well towards September or
October, or later perhaps. I couldn't tell just off-
handed but they were there a long time. ’

@ Over a year?
Yes, all of that.

Q. 4nd during that period they conducted these experiments
more or less during fthat period of time, did they not?

Yes, they did.
And what resulds did they obtain?

A Well, they were supposed to pay me ten thousand dollars
in cash for the property; that is, in payments. I have
the contract with me if any one should like to see it.
I found out during the time it wae a success. They
claimed they found sulphide very close to the surfsca.

Youn mean the radiore method was a success?

Yes, that 1s what they claim. In fact, they went over to
the Copper Chief %o prove it. They have a body of iron

- sulphide there. I am positive the engineers didn't want to
see anything of the company maps or anything of that kind.
They surveyed with the electrical outfit, and after they
were thru they went to the general office to check up on how

close they came to the ore body. You couldn't hardly tell
it apart.

¢ The Radiore Company went %o the surfuce of the Coppe r Chief
end conducted experimmnts and obtain readings which showed
an ore body, which they later checked with the knownore
body shown on the maps of the Copper Chief. 1Is that correct?

A Yes, that is correet. Included with the radiore they had
the torsion balance from the School of Mines of Colorado.

Q And was that in there at the same time?



A No, they .Jre there & little separat = They worked to-
gether. The Radlore C mpany paid for it.

Q@ How long were the torsion balance experiments carried on?

A I couldn't tell.

Q Approximately.

A Well, at least sixty days.

Q@ And they covered what?

A They covered the Radiore number two, three and fowr, and
also the Copper Chief.

Q As I understand it, Mr. Larson, in mdk ing the torsion
balance experiments they had to have the surface of the
-elaime leveled off. Is that right?

A They had to levelloif a place sbout half the size of this room.

Q  And those places are still visible over theie,are they not?

A Yes.

Qv I believe some twelve or fiftéen of them are scattered

ground on the Radiore claims?

‘A Yes, on Radiore number four there is about four or five of

those places now. 1 think they all saw them, the engineers.

@ And then-- the torddon balance bore out the findings -
that were made by the radiore instruments, did they not?

A I took that for granted. They voth worked together.
Q m@he Radiore Company used the option, did they not?
A Yes, they made certain payments.

Q Now, coming back to the Radiore determinations, did they
cover all of the Rddiore claims two, three, “and four?

A Yes, they did.
And d4id they get on the Blowout?

Fo, they d4idn't have timﬁ. They may have had it on a part
of the Blowout I don't know for sure.

Q They did make a considerable number of measurements on
the two, three and four Radiore, did they not?

A Yes, they did.

The Radiore Number two, of course, is not involved in
this contest. You have discovered mineral there I believe
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that goes high as twelve to fifteer ver cent copper?
Yes.

And besrs considerable gold and silver?

Yes.

What ean you say about the Radiore number iwo measurements
as being similar to those made on Radiore numbers three
and four?

It is about the same.

In other words, the same indications appeared on the three
and four as on the number two, where you do have mineral
exposed in quantities which runs as high as twelve to
fifteen psr cent copper--

The formation runs east and west.

Is that true?

yes.

Now then, at the t ime the Radiore folks were in there and
made these determinations, particularly on your claims
Radiore three and four there were indicestions of sulphide -
underlying the sandstone, was there no%?

Certainly, there was.

And that was also the indications they found from their
radiore nmeasurements at the Copper Chief?

Yes .

And 2t the Copper Chief they proved the value of their
determinations by later finding out from the engineers
of the Copper Chief that there was an ore body at the
place their electricdl measurements indicated?

They did. They had meps of the Copper Chief showing where
the ore body was, and it checked up in A-~1l condition.

lr. Larson, will you tell us first on your claim Radiore
number three what mineral you have found thexe in place.

Well, there is quértz and hematite of iron. That is the
mother of minersl. If you haven't quartz and iron--
hematite of iron and quartz it is pretty poor.

When you say it is the mother of mineral, is that your
experienee in the Verde District?

Yes.

That where you find a showing of quartz and hematite of
iron it leads you to believe there is mineraligzation there?
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It does

liow, what workings have you placed upon Radiore number
three claim?

On Radiore number three claim there is about a fourty foot
shaft. There is a tunnel that was caved in but you can go
in now about 140 feet or something like that. Then on

the line between the three and four there is another tun-
nel which is in sbout 135 feet. It is right on the line
of the working on the three and four.

And what have you found on number four cdaim?

Well, there is & little iron amongst the lime but it is
kind of sediment. There is quite a little bit of iron.

Did you find hematite of iron or specularite on number
four claim?

No, I didn't.

Tha t dump on number four, far up on the hillside where
one of the stations was placed by the torsion balance
operator, wasn't there hematite of iron Pound there?
With the iunstrument.

I thought it was found there.

That is on number three, isn't it. I am quite sure that
it is, 4

Did you cause pamples to be taken and assays to be made
from those claims?

Yes, 1 have some.

Would you refer to that (counsil passing & paper to the
witness). Does that represent the result of assays of
materials which you tood from these Radiore claims and
Blowout Number $wo. ‘

Yes, it is.

And you caused those assays to be made, did you?

Yes.

Which of those asssys by number refer to Radiore number
two claimg?

The numbers are here I think, number one, number two,
number four. '

Are part of those assays from Radiore number two?

Yesg,
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And which ones are from Radiore number two?

Enmber.two ié 12.4 in copper

What sample number is 149

That is sample number one.

Is that the only ome from number two eclaim?
Also number twqgg

That is alse fiém number two?

Yes.

And where is number three sample taken f rom?
That is from an open cut.

On what claim? .

On the number twos

That is on the number two?

Yes.

What is sample number four?

Number four, lei's see, that is on number two t00.
And number five?

Number five, that is on the number four.

o > o P o b o P o P o Pk o b o b oo P oD

That is from the number four claim?

Yes.

Then sample marked D-1, D-2, and D-8, where are they from?
They are from the Blowout.

That is from the Blowout number two 9

> o b o B

Yes.

Mr. Crawford: We offer this in evidence.

‘Mr. French: No objection.

(The paper so tendered is by the notary marked as pro-
testee's exhibit number 1, witness Larson, and the same
is enclosed herewith.)

Mr. Crawford: We will also offer this affidavit in
evidence, which now appesgs to be a mrt of the official

files of the Pnd o0frice .



Mr. Prenck No objection. iz

(ghe document so tendred is by the notary marked as
Protestee's exhibit number 2, witness Larson, and the same
is enclosed herewith.)

(By Mr. Crawford) Now, I peljeve you said you had been
closely connected with these claims for a comsiderable
period of time, and that you had actually worked upon them
yourself. .

1 have.

What amount of money have you and your associates spent on
the Radiore three and four and the Blowout number two?

#ell, the Radiore Company must have spent at least twenty-
£ive thousand dollars on the torsion balance. Then they
paid me %en thousand dollars when they exercised the option.
Then I had foreclosed on them later on because I had done
the assessment work for a year or two. They went broke and
into the receiver's hands. That is why they didn't develop
the property in 1929. ,

How much have you spent in addition %o what they spent?

Fully fifteen thousand dollars off and on, including the

group, but the most of the work was done on two, three,

and four. There was some done on the Blowout; all of the

discovery shafts. There were twenty-eight claims in the group.
1 decided afterwerds that I couldn't hold them, 80 I

thought I would get s patent on four of the best and re-

linquish the balance. :

Now, have you seen such things as gossan , specular iron,
and pyrite and greenstone and porphyry and things of that
nature in other places in the Verde District than upon
your group of claims which we are now talking about?

i have. In many places.

ind what nas been the history of the presence of those
things in the district as belng indicative of minerals?

They had good mineral and some ghipping ore.

You have had considerable experinece in that district and
have seen & lot of mines developed and you have had an active
part in developing some of them yourself, and would you say
from the showing you have on the Radiore three and four and
the Blowout number two that & prudent man would be Justified
in spending money in the hopes of being successful?

I£f I d4idn't think there was a good chance (0 oOpen a mine
I wouldn't have fought to get a patent at all.

You believe t hen that & man would have Jjustifiable reason
to spend money on those claims in the hopes he would develop
a mine which would produce paying quantities of ore?



I do b leve that.

That applies to Raudiore three and four and Blow-
out number two?

One claims is no good. You need at least a few claims
surrounding it. :

Had you finished?

I was going to say you can't get capital interested in
one claim very welles They always want a bunch of them,
but I couldn % afford to apply for a patent for any more,
You did apply for three and four?

Yos,

There is no one who could contest Radiore number two, is
there? ‘

Ro.

You he#ve & showing of twelve to fifteen per cemt copper
there, have you not?

Yes.

It is your thought that Radiore number two, being a worth-
while property beyond any question, you couldn't interest
veople in a single claim. I8 that right?

HNot very well,

Do you know where the claim commonly known &s the Ewing
Hooker property is located? ;

Yes, I do.
And where is that in an air line from your property here?

Radiore number two I bellieve comes in about two or three
hundred feet of the side line of the Hooker-Ewing property
in one place.

Do you know anything # out the produciion of ore on this
Ewing and Hooker claim?

They have some ore below the road. 7They have a shaft with
a very gool showing of hematite of irom and quartz and
during the boom they bonded it for £3Pfty thousand dollars,.
It was for two hundred fifty thousand dollars but fifty
thousand was actually paid by Kastner here in Prescott.

Was any money spent in developing the propewty?

Yes, they ran in about eighteen hundred feet but they
didn't get up under the Blowout.
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About he much would that figure?

I don't know, An engineer could figure the actual cost.

By road, that is, Jjust around the point from you camp
there, is it not?

Yes.
On an air line it is Jjust up over the ridge?

Yes, part of the ground Jjoins ou, as I say.

- You are familiar with the workings in there called

the Black Hill, are you?

Yes.

Where is that in relation to your claim?

Well, it is a short distance to the north east.

About how far on an air line?

On an air line, would be a whole lot less than a mile,
How much? |

I couldn't tell exactly. I think Mr. Reber could tell
it on the map.

What about the ore production there?

There was not & great deal bdbut right below there, that

Joins right om, is whet is called the Ballard group.

A shipment was made in the early days by a feldhow named
Pommy Martin. I don't know what the resulis were. I

own that property now. A bunch paid eighty thousand dollars
for #t. I bought it in at a tax sale.

What group is that?

The Ballard group.

Ard there is a definite showing of ore upon those properties?
A good showing.

And a definite showing on the Green lionster?

Yes, and between there and the Green lonster.

How, are there any other propertise around there that did
produce ore?

The Cliff mining claim produced quite a lot of copper. There
is some very rich ore been shipped cut of there and there
dmsama is some you can go dowm and take a sample of now that

Db
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will run enty three per cent in co- 3r and some gold and
dilver. .v rums right due east and w.st, right into the
Radiore property. There is one plaee the engineers took a
sample ten feet wide of this gossan outcropping that sampled
about thirteen dollars to the ton. In Pfsct, you can find
samples of good ore all the way thru to the Radlore one,
two, three and four. It is a dyke all the way thruugh.

I kave some ssmples. 4nd the Green Monster--

Q@ You found-some evidence of pyrite?

A

o P oo kb o

Yes, 1 have a sample here which you may be interested in

(the witness hafdding a paper to council). I think that it is.
I think Mr. Smoot knows that ground pretty well all the

way from the lower fsult up through thexe,

Phis nssay sheet represents susmples taken of surrounding
properties, does it?

Yes, that ussay sheet represents ssmples that were teken
from surrounding properties there.

The Green Monster, the Silver Plate, Blue Bell, the Cliff,
the Lione Pine, the Missouri, snd the Brookshire?

Yes. On the Silver Plate--
Pell us where the Silver Plate is.

It was formerly owned by the United Verde Copper CGompany,
by Senator Cisrk. There is a lead going wast and west the
whole width of the drift that runs about fouwr/lbunces in
silver. There is s streak of guartz and iron sulphide.
Some runs sway up, snd that has been drifted on and followed
due toward the Radiore, and I believe that is going %o de-
velop an ore body when they get farther up under the hill.
The Cliff has been favlted. It looks like it slid right
over. The flat fault is nothing but & diorite. The Silver
Flste is in place. There is quartz porphyry on the foot
wall, greenstone schist on the hanging wall.
Well, I have been with guite a fow of thew. They seem
4o think It will lead to the main ore boedy up in the di-
rection of the Radiore. There is a nmighty fine chance.
1 had some assays that went one hundred and eighty eight
ounces in silver and some eight or ten per cemnt in coppers

Where is the Silver Ylate in relaiion to your claims?
1 can show it on the map. It Joins on the (liff.
About how far aﬁay is 1t9

Well, you can figure it ont on the map and tell exactly.

And it is your belief that the ore body on the Silver Plate

gonzénuea on in the direction of the Radiore three and four,
S .l:)

Ho doubt.
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it is not expozed now?

Bo. iith developmeant itv should be.
liow, where is the Blue Bell, and tell us about that Iir. Larson.

TPhat lays parsilell with the Ciiff on the north side of the
clifre.

Is it closer to yours than the Cliff?
You can tell there on the map.
And how sbout the ors hody there?

Well, that is where the geologists sampled it. They said
about ten feet will average about thirteem dollars to the ton.

Is there sny.indication of the direction of the ore body?
Well, that has been faulted in there. That runs & little to
the north west and south east, slmost due north and south
you might say. But the Cliff ig not in place. It is simie
iar to the cuteroprings on the United Verde Copprer Company.

How about the Lone Fine?®

Ore was shipped in the aarly days. 1t shows the as8says on
thnﬂt pﬁpe!‘. y

Where is the Lone Pine?

That is about I should Jjudge, roughly I would estimate it is
aboul twelve or fifteen hundred feet from the Silver Plate,
north. The map shows it.

How sbout the formation in there?

It is porphyry schist and guartz. There is quite & nice
quartz vein you can trace up.

Do you s&till have this overcapping of limestone there?
Ho, not on this properiy.

Is there any indication of the direction that bthe ore body
on the Lone Fine might take?

It is kind of foulted. It runs east snd west through the
Ewing property.

That ie Just over the ridge?
Yes, almost in conflict with my ground.

How about the Missouri cla im?
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- The following three a&nyles were taken by the Greea lonster Mining-
Company and assayed by the United Verde Copper Company:

Cu. Ag. Au.
Por Cent Qunces Cunces
8-27-17 Green louster Mining Cp.
s&aple ¥4é~?rospaet e 0t ~~ B.60 0.25
i "4b #8 10,@ 1.20 0.20
3-2-17 Green lonster Mining Co. '
Sample 46~ Gorge Tunnel 5.60 1.00 0.02 -
8=-9-17 Green Monster Hining Co. ‘
Sample ¢13 B2 £.30 3.00 1.08
o ?14 55 1,10 0.50 0.60

Picked samples from dumps of SILVER PLATE:

' 8 121.40 0.28
SILVER PLA?E VBIN
Ficked semple 8.6 187.68 12
Silver YPlate vein ’ 70.12 0.08
Silver plate vein {width 18 inches) :
10'1?“58 11.83 5-5‘ .04 _}.ﬁ
140 £t ineline Shaft, Silver Plate |
gl Sample, § 5. wide--oncoueus 6,356 per %an in gnld ana aiivor
He " 3.8? »
CLIPF CLAIK, APRX SHAP? - o, Ag.  Au.  TIusol.
- 1l-81l-36 Sample £E2.68 1.87 0.08
ﬁpax Rhgolita 313:39 ba&y) 4.8 0.8 .02 87.2

BIUEBELL CLald

Oxide gossan, about 10 feet wide 6.9 Q.5 0.6
Incline dwunp 1.8 2.2 0.5

LOHE PINE CLAIM

5-14-38 ‘ 3.68 0.72

Incline 40 £% deep 1.8 0.8 024 2.
Cuterops 4.8 0.1 0.4 64.0
10 in.x 10 feot §#2 0.5 5.10 0.280 56.8
14 1nx . g #3 1.0 1.10 0.20 63.8
KISSOURI CLAIM .

Bump Samyle #8 2.4 B B0 78.6

BROOKSHIRE SHAP?
Veiln 4 to 10 inches wide 12.78 5.42 0.28
Dump #1 ¥y 10.0 0.19 53.0
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That is_wﬂy down on the fault. There is about twelve br
fourteen inches of that ore I took samples of. It all be-
longs 1o we.

How far is it from the Radiore claim@?

Wwell, that is a mile, I guess, down there. The map will
show that.

/Mr. Crawford: We will offer this assay sheet in evidenoé‘/
[ at this time.
Mr. french: Ho objection.

(Thereupon, the document so tendered is by the notary
marked as Irotestee’s exhibit number 3, witnees Larson,
and the same ls enclosed herewith.)

(By Mic. Crawford) low, Mr. Larson, these geological for-
mations, the ore bodies and the indications you have seen
on these properties listed on protestee's exhibit number
three, are they any different from the showings you have

on the Radiore two, three and four, und the Blowout number two?

1t is & little higher up. The character of the formation
is a little diffevent.

That is because it is higher up?
Yes, and overcapped.
Witk Llimestone and sandstone formetions?

Yes., The only one that could tell is the torsion balance,
about the mineraligzation there.

liow, 18 there anything in connection with your testimony
that I have overlocked which you weuld like to bring out
yourself?

Well, I cun't think of anything Jjust exactly now, but
ianter 1 may have gomething.

You think you have told it all?

I think I have told the principle part of it. On the ¢clifsf
there is almost identically the same kind of quartz porphyry
and dlorite and minerslizetion as they had in the glory

hole Lefore they stripped the pit. You know, at the Unit ed
Verde Copper Ccmpany.

Do you want to expand upon that as to just whati:you mean?

They had a Cleopatra quarts porphyry &8 well us the United
Verde diorite. '

"hat is a diorite?
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From the vnited Verde geologists; tuey named that.

And that same diorite is out on the Green lonster and
almost abuts your property? _

¥es.

And the Cleopatra quartz porphyry occurs in both places,
Is that what you mean?

Yss.

That the Clesopatra quartz porphyry occured in the steam
shovel pit at the United Verde.

¥t 1s the same formstion out there also.

How, is there anything else?

On the Silver Plate thers is nearly =211 guartz porphyry in

underground workings, and greenstone. On the surface there
is free gold shown. 1 have some myself. There is quite

a lot of shipping ore that will run eight and ten dollars,

on the surface, and some will run a way up.

™he Radiore number two really overlaps on your three, does
it not?

Yes.

And Radiore number three?

Yes, there is a conflict between &ll three bfothem.

There 1is no overlap on four of two, is there?

o, not on two. You come in conflict with the Blowout claim,

Mr. Crawford: Well, I believe that is all. Oh, there
is another question of twoe.

lir. Larson, on your Radiore number %twe, which is the un-
contested c¢laim, you found iron pyrite and you found,

of course, some oxydized iron, did you not?

Tes.

And scme quartz porphyry?

It is kind of altered guartz porphyry, because it is high up.
And some you called Jasper?

Yes.

You, of course, have seen that quartz porphyry exposed
in other properties, have you not?
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Yes, it is similar.

rThe qﬁartz porphyry upon your place is the same?

Yes, sir, practically.

What is the general effect of the ditovery of pyrite in
that distriet upon the mind of prospector or geologist?

You take pyrite of iron, that is generally the mother of
mineral, that is, from the prosepotors viewpoint. I am
not & geologist. I have had experience since 1894,

Prom your experience in the Verde Valley 1s that pyrite
the forerunner of copper mineral?

It is a good chance for orebody. In fact, we took two
samples showing speckled iron and quartz. The minersl
shows all thru it. 1 think the Government men were with
mz ug yestorday when we were up there. I think they
will verify that. ;

Mir. Crawford: I think that is all.
CROSS EXAMINATION
(By Mr. French) WNow, Mr. Larson, youv said you had a copy
of the option you hed with the Radiore Company that you

would be glad to preoduce. We would be glad io have you
produce it, :

I wille It is right here handy. Here is the option on
the stock they wanted to buy afterwards,

lir. FPavour: Let me put that together (council fastens
papers together ).

Mr. French: The protestant will offer in evidence
the cption produced by the witness.

Mr. Pavour: Well, I suggest--

(By Mr. Pavor:) Do you want to keep this original
ir. Larson?

Yes, sir, for future reference.

lire French: We are perfectly willing to substitute a
coPy .

ilr. Pavour:; MNo objection.

(IThereupon, the document so tendered is by the Notary
marked as Protestunt's exhibit 4, witness Larson, and the
same is enclosed herewith.)

(By Mr. French) Now, Mr. Larson, you spoke of a book
which you laid on the table, of the Radiore Company. 1
suppose that was a prospectus?
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Which?

You have there a pamphlet of the hadiore Company wh ich
you started to offer. ‘

Yes.,

May we have that in record too?

Yes ’

Is that the only one you have of thaty

Huyxxixx Yes.

Have you an extra copy of that?

No, sir.
My. Pavour: It is part of the geophysical wcrke. I

don t know whether you want it or mot. If you start
putting in geophysiceal pamphlete we had beiter put

in some books upon it. We have no objeetion to i%.

(By Mr. French) Are you willing that this copy be put
in the record? :

Just as you feel like. ;
"Mr. French: I would like to put it in.
The witness: How sbout it?

Mr. Pavour: It is the only one you have. Frobably
you can't get another one.

The withess: I don't think it is anything import-
ant to keepe.

Mr. Pavour: It could be photostated very quickly.
We will consent that it nve mde a part of the record.

Mr. Prench: Mark it «s protestant's exhibit B.
(Phereupon, the document so tendered is by the notary
marked as protestant's exhibit B, witness Larson, and the
game is onclosed herewith.)
{(By Mir. French) Now, as I understand you ir. Larson,
the Radiore Company entered into this optidén with you
and pald you ten thousand dollars. Is that right.

Yes, the option was in Mr. Qlund's pame but he wae the
chisf engineer for the compa y.

You actually received ten thousand dollars upon that?

I did. If you want to take a look at this other (the
witness indicating other papers),
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What is th-¢?
They drganizad the Rajah liining Company after they paid me
and took an option upon my stock (the witness handing a
paper %o councél). They thought it might be valuable you know.

Mr. FPpench: Wé offer it in evidence as protestant's
exhibit C.

Mr. Crawford: Just & question on voir dire.
This exhibit ¢ was the option which youguve to H. E. Olund
who was the representative of the compeny which was later
formed as the Rajah Mining Company. Is that right?

Yes,

And this option coveggﬁ covered the property now known as
Radiore Pwo, thwee, snd foure?

Yes .

And they exercised this option and paid you ten thousand
dollars?

in payments. 'The last was made in 1921.

And lster they asked for and got thd® optiom, exhibit ¢,
which is an option yn your mining stock?

Yes, That shows, you know, they made s payment.
Mr. Crawfor@; I think that clears it upe.

(By Mr, French) Well, now, was it the Rajah or the Radiore
Company that paid you the ten thousand dollars?

QOlund paid me the ten thousand ddllars. That Southwestern
Engineering Compsn ywere in bsack of it.

(The document so tendered is by the notary msrked as
protestant's exhibit WXER C, witness Larson, and the same
i8 enclosed herewith.,)

He paid you in pehalf of the Company?
Yes. Then they organized this Rajah lining Gompayy.
And which compapy wae organized first?

The Radiore, according to the pamphlet. I think they were a
weparate concern from what the Rajah Company was, you see,

Then they did this work you nave testified about and went broke 9

They went broke in 1929 like everybody else did. I went
broke myself.
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And they never paid you the other paxgants stipulated in
the option?

Yes, they paid me all the payments.
Tan thousand dollars was the end of it%?

That was the end of the optien. They deposited the Rajah

g#%0cek in the bank to my credit.

Then you testified you.férecloséd. Whe d4id you forgclose on?
On the company.

The Hadiore Compmy?

On the Rajah, because I Aid the assessment worke.

Did you do that in a court proceeding or under a fordeiture
procaeding under the mining law?

In court proceeding ag neer as I recolleot.

You formelly foreclosed and get & Jjudgament in the Superior
Bourt sgainet the Rediore Company cOVeving the twenty-eight
claims listed in exhibit A?

Yas,

And this group covered by these twenty-eight claims in
vart is the kadiore three, four and the Blowout?

Yes.

In other words, the Radiore three ana'four and the Blowout
were inciuded in the ground included in exhibit A?

it was included right in there.

And then jin what way did this Radiore three and four and
the Blowout become losted?

We}ld, then later on 1 couldn't afford to do the assescment
work, you know, and & fellow by the name ot Hayvus located
that ground. That was later om. I couldn't tell you the date,

I see. and where is Hayvus now?

Well, hoe is pretty well along in age. fe is in the Pioneer®s
Home .

Well, he relocated the ground?
He relocated twenty-~two of the cisims.
What?

He relocated twenty-two of the claims,
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And inelu. 4 in the twenty-two claime . hat he located it
ineluded the Radiore three and four and the Blowout?
Yes. :

Then do you remember when Hayvus located or relocated this
ground?

I haven't the record with me.
Just aprroximately.

It might be along in thi#ity-two, perheps, or thirty-three.
1 don't know exactly. I could look it up.

Your avplication for patent would be correct in that respect?
What do you mesn.

I say, your application for pstent wovld be correct in that
resgpeet?

Yes. I bought them afterwards you see.

Yas,
Mr. French: The pfotestant will request the reviewing
officers to juvdicially notice the application for patent
in this connection,

And then you hought these twenty-two claims from Mr. Hayvus?

Yas,

In about 193%%

It may be, yes. It is on the record,

Q Whatever the record shows is correct?

A
Q

Yes, that is correct.

And the Blowout elaim, how did that come to be known as
the Blowout number two?

Blowout number two?
ies.
Let's see. '"Yhe Blowout number swo wus not included in those

twenty-two claims hecause it was ownsd by the Verde
Combination.

Well, now, was the Blowout number two included in the
twenty-two claims listed in exhibit A%

I am no% sure. The Blowcut number two wasn't, no., You
can see that on the map.
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The BPlowow.. number twe was mnot includ  in these twenty-
two claims that are listed in exhibit A?

Bo. It Yoins on.

It was pot in the twenty-two claims that Mr. Hayvus located?

" No. 1 located thet in-- well, the record will show for it.

And this Blowout number tw , hmd‘you at sny time prior to
the present logation held that ground ore elaimed it or
had you any interest in it?

Ho.

You understaﬂd that the Blowout numbér two is one of the
eclaims you are now applying for patent for, do you not?

Yes. The work is done upon 1t and the money spent upon it,
liow, we will take the Blowout number two first. What dis-
covery of wvaluvable minerasl have you made upon the Blowout
namber two, Mr. Larson?

Thers is hematite of iron and quartz and some speeks of
pyrites of iroa.,

Some spacks, 4id you say?
A little iron, white iron.

Specks of iron. Now, are thses things you have Jjust men-

Q
toined valuable mers¥ mineral?

A

Q

Well, that is the indication, what we go by. If you haven't
got guartz and pyrites the chance is very slim of opening
up a body of ore.

Isn't it true that you have these indieations and don'%
have sany valuable mineral?

A I haven't seen sny. You wom't get it if you don't get

Q

A

~depth. This is very shallow depth, not over twenty feet.
Well, what values have you goiten on Blowout number two?
Well, just a traece. I think the assays show that.

Now, Mr, Larson, in order that there may not be any con-
fusion, will you mark on exhibit one the eclaim that each
one of these assays refer to.

"B" is the Blowout--

Could you put this on there?

Mr. Crawford: It is all in the record.

Mr. French: I was not able %o follow it s&ll.
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(By Mr. French) Samples one, two, three, four and five,
where did they come from?

One, two, three, and four csme from Radiore number twos.

Mr. Prench: Will it be alil right for me to mark that on
there? g

Mr. Pavour: Yes. T think it is in the record already.
(By Mr. ¥rench) Then as I understand you, Mr. Larson,
semples marked one, two, three and four on vprotestee's
exhibit number one refer to Radicre number two sand that
is mot involved in these proceedings.

Phis Radiore number two? It is not being contested, no.

low, where 4id this sample number five on exhibit one come
from?

That is from the tunnel on the line between the two c¢laims
three snd four.

That came from the tunnel along the line or three and fouy
vou say?

Yes, The work is done there for the mmmbers three and
four, the patent work.

And you c¢laim that for both three and four, 4o you?

Yes.

Yes. That is right. UNow, this sample sumber five as

shown on protestee's exhibit number one is four hundredths
of s ver sent copper, is it not?

Yes,

What is the approximate value?

I don't know exactly. It is very small. It showe there is
mineral there.

Well, that, then, that four one~hundredthe of a per cent
of copper, as shown by sample mwhur number five, would be
about twelve ceffis, would it not?
1 don't knowe

Mr. Reber: A little less then a pound to the ton.
(By dir. Preanch) @hat is copper worth now?
Twelve and a'half cents.

30 that would be nime or ten cenis or something like that,
would it no&?

gomething like that.



o

o > o b o F oo Pk

A
Q

Well; now, o. this protestee's exhibit i .ber one, whai do o
sanples cue-B, gnd three-B, Two-B, where did they come from?
They were taken from the Blowout.

You mean Blowout number two?

168 . ‘

And whai is the approximste value of thoze samples, Mr. Larson?
Well, you will have %o figure that out.

Whatever i% fegures out?

Yes .,

111 right. And would it be a profitable operation to work
the Blowoui number two for the values shown on these
samples one~R, two-B, and three-37

It would not but fhat is the indications. There is some-
thing underneath. :

Well, now, as to the fadiore number three apd the Radiore
number four, what values did pou get on those claims, ‘
cthar thon the junnel that is already covered by protestee's
exhibit number one, which is nhetween turee and Ffour? bid
you get any other valued on those claims?

Those assays come from the two and three.

Well, I vunderstood you a 1litftle while ago that the first
four samples uumbered one, two, three, snd four, on ex-

hibit cne sre from numbzr two.

o PP o

>

Pwo and three didn't i say?
Did you say they all came from number two?
Yes.

fhey sre from number twe. Hladiore nuwber three head nothing to
do with thess csamples one, two, three and four. Ie thet right?

Phere was Some assays I had. I think you people have them.

I am talking abdut this exhibit (councel imdiceting %o the
witness).

I would have to see the map to fell youe
Whieh map do you want to see?
(Pherc is DO YespONCE.)

tr. Prench: Where is the affidavit (the peper is pro-
duced and passed to coucel).
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(By Mr. Frc sh) HRow, Mr. larson, I wi . refer you to
your exhibit number ftwo and ak ask you o look at fhat.

(After the witness examines the exhibit for some tine )
fhat is right.

Now, Mr. Laerson, the assays numbered one, two &nd three,
referred to on your exhibit aumber Ywo which you hold in
yeur hand, what claim did they come Ifrom?

They came from number two.

All three of them?

Tes,

Assay number two~B, thet speaks for itself; thut is from
the tunnel bewween three and four?

ieso

How, I will eall your attention to the paragraph lmmediate-
ly following the paragraph that refers to assay number
two-B, and ask you %to read it into the reccrd.

Mr. Pavour; I object. 1%t is alresdy in the records

(By Mr. Trench) that statement is correct in the next to
the last paragraph in that affidavit, namely:

"The workings of this property are all in the ex~
ploratory siage of doevelopment, and but littie ore has been
extracted. No shipment has heen made by me, and no ore
in quantity is available for shipment.”

Phat was correct at that time, was it?
Yes. You mean it was working =@t that time?
Yeg. The statement is;

"The workings of thic property are all in the ex-
ploratory stage of development, and out iittle ore has
been extracted, No shipment has boen muade by me, and no
ore in quantity is available for shipment.”
les,

All of that was true at that time?

Yes,

And it is true now?

Yes, Siro

And that is also true as to the Blowout number two?

There is no pay ore there. There is indications and

mineral'shgwins.mhat is all,
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Q Now, Mr. La. on, if you had the Blowoui _.laim number two
removed from the vicinity of the United Verde, the United
Verde mines, would you consider it of itvelf a valusble
prospect? ,

A I don't understand Jjust exactly what the question was.

Q@ If you had it in some other location with re¢ference to the
United Verde and the United Verde Extension~-

Mr. Crawford: We object to that as assuming s state o
facts that dves not exist. It is in the United Verde Min-
ing district; it is there physically, and there is mno evi-
dence that 1t ls sowme plauce else. That ie not & proper
question to &sk. It is purely a hypothetical guestion.

V. French: I believe in these proceedings the answer
i1s recorded, zubject to the ¢bjection.

Hre. Crawford: Jew. Go ahecd and ansver ithe guestion.
The witness: Clate the questlon once more.
Mr. French; Will you please read the guestion Mr. Reporter?
(Therevpon, the last questlon and snswer und the partial
question following, a® above shown, are read sloud by the
revorter. )
Q@ (By lMr. Crawford) Do you underetand the yuvesiion?

A Well, I don't quite understand that gquesticn Just as it is
put, but the indication--

Mr. Crawford: Maybe Mr. French could refreme the question.

The witness: Bwplain the questioh, bMr. FPrench. Just vhat
do you mean by it?

@ (By lir. Prench) Well, I will ask it this way, Mr., Lsrson.
If the Blowout number two claim was not near the United
Verde or the United Verdc Extension, would you ctill consider
the Blowout number two a valuable claing :

A Yes, I would.

Kr. Crawford: We mske the same cobjection as heretofore
to this cuestion.

Q@ (By Mr. Prench) Now, why would you sonsider the Blowout
number two clsim s valuable c¢leim under this condition?

A Beczuse there 1s ilvon and quarts end the general charmcter
of the formatioun.

R And yet all the value you have been able to get from this
cluim is but a few cents.
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A Yes. You con In't £ind any value in the = nited Verde
Extension until you got to depth.
Q When does a discovery take place under the mining law?
bir. Crawford: That calls for cconcl usion.

r. Preneh: He testifies as a miner of years of experience.

Mr. Crawford: I don't think you nave any right to ask
him what the law is. :

A I know that s discovery shaft is and what the location of
the elaim is snpd alil of those things.

Q@ What is a mineral discovery sccording to your understanding,
Mr. Larson? '

A It igs s ten foot famce, two hundred fourty feet of diri
taken ouvt of it is an open cut.

Q What kind of materisl exvosed?

A You sre supposed to have ledge metter or mineral in place.

R What? |

A You are supposed to have a ledge, ieuge matter, or mineral

in place.
Q@ What ig minersl?
A That ig guartz and iron.
Q@ And does it hﬁve tc have any value?

.&It is all leached out on the surfsce. You find leabhed
quartz, then mineral below, lobe ol wimes.

Q Well when, in your opinion, does the discovery oceur?
at the uime you uctuvally find valuable mineral or at some
other times

A With developuent. The Location of the dis ery shaft is
all in the iroan quartz and schist,

@ Now, whea do you say a 4discovery occurs?
When the work is dene.
kr. Crawford: We lntercpose the same objection.

Q@ (By Mr, Prench} Vhat do you mesn by “"when the work is done,"
Mr. Larson?

A When you do the work with & pick and shovel, opma cut or
8irk a ten foot hole. 11 of those things is whet the dis-
covery concstlitues.
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Q You have & aigcovery then regardless oi shether you find

any minersl cor not?
A %Fhat applies to the law, I think.

Q Do you or not have to have valuable material to have a
digcovery?

Mr. Favor:; Let us interspose a very earnest protest to
this questioning. What he says wouldn't make the law or
unnake the law. We are here to discover what is in Mr.
Larson's mine, the actual condition out there, and we
earnectly protest against this line of examination.

We subkit he i8 not a lawyer and thzt he is mnot
qualified to ammex answer those guestions,

{ Thoreupon, at 12:00,0'clock noon, a roeess is
taken until 1:15 o'clock this afternoon.)

APTER RECESS 1:15 o"clock p.me

Mr. Prench: Will you pnlease read the last question, Mr.
Reporter. .

{ Thereupon, the iast guestion, &s ahove ghown, 1s read
aloud by the reporter,)

A Tc the best of my knowledge you nave %o have mineral in place.

@ By Mr. Freneh) And do you mean, Mr. Larson, valuable mineral
or Jjust mineral in the broad sense?

A Well, when you pave a good showing, good surface indications,
that should he sufficients But that is the way we used to
get =« patent; that is what we used. If you had iron and quartz
., and minersl they wouvld slways pass the patent.
Q@ Apnd the value of the mineral was nol a prerequisite?

There would be no grouad pstented if yov had tc hsve pay ore
in sight. It wouldn't be any vse in prosepcting.

Q Are quartz porphyry and greenstone contacts always associated
with mineralization in this disgtrict?

A I have found it that way.
And by mineralization do you mesn valuable minerals?

Where you have an indication, even though it don't carry
more than a trace, it is mineral.

Q@ How mugh ore has been produced on the Green Monster and
Cliff clainm¥

A Well, the Greca lMonster and the CLiff elaims, there was a



carload of v y rich ore taken out in t. - early days, I
shovld Jjudge a&bout ninety-nine.

Q@ Ninety-nine?

Yes,

I see.
prospector took that out.

And in recent years has there heen anyihing tkeken out of those?
o/

» o P o P

I nhave shipvning ore there now on my propsrty, on the Cliff
and the Bluebell and Silver Plate.

Q@ How, cun you tell by geophysic methods as to the quality
and qhuntity of asn underground ore body?

A It is impossible for me to tell but both {the State of Arizons
and the University of 4rizona and the State of Californis
agree they can locate the minerasl but not tell the quality.
But if you find iron sulphide or a body of sulphide you are
bound to get copper, gold and silver with it in the Verde
Districet. That hes been the hisiory.

@ MNow, Isnt it true in this distriet as it is in other districts
that there are times when you don't get those valves below?

A There are different districts. ALl are not the same formation
but 411 lock for the iron quartz and iron sulphides. If
they have any of that formation they are willing to dig
upon it and spend some money.

Q@ In other words, you mean they are willing to do further
prospecting?

A Yes, they zré always willing to spend money on that kind of
formation.

Q BNow, you testified about this Radiore Company spending
twonty-£ive thousand dollars.

A That is approximatelys

Yes, approximately. That was on these twenity-eight claims
mentioned in exhibhit A?

A Yes.

Now, where was that money spent, if you know?

&

A There wae one fellow worked there for sbout a year on
Radiore numher two and three. They didn' do mbeh wo rk on
fours It was on two snd three the work wes done.

Q Then why 4idn't they pursve this work any further?
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Well, they went broks like good many o..ers, in 1929.

Nobody else had taken their place until you got 142

They tried to get it back but the leader died, Fraunk B
Ameted. T hed some correspondence with nim. But he diled
and that weg the end of it.

Yes. DNow, Mr. Iarscn, does any quartz porphyry outerop
on Radiore number three?

YB¥EYX On Rediore number threa?
Yes.

No, it is mostly greenstone schist, because the porphyry is
covered., There is 8 very little that looks like porrhyry.

Then is the game true of numbexr four?

Number four is mostly covered wifh sedimentury.

That is mostly covered?

Yes .

And the Blowout number tw ?

Or. the Blowout rumber two there is porphyry in that.
On the surfacee?

Yes. Some eall it porphyritie schist. It is pretty much
the same thing.

And does that earry vslues on the surface?
Some times it does.
I mean on these claims.

I% may carry four-bits in silver. One assay went eighteen
dollars gold, silver and copper.

What eluim is that?
Radicre pumber two.
Ne. I am talking about three and four.

Well, there is values there, & 1ittle gold, silver, and
COPPET .

You mean these assuay certificates which sre already in
evidence here?

Yes. It shows some. OFf course, it ig not in paying quantities.

Q@ It is not?
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A Ro. You mave G0 get some depth.

Q Yes.

A They started a three-~compartment shaft and went down about
fourty feet. That dldn't ammount to anything.

Q Yes.
Mr. French: That is all.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

Q@ (By Mr. Grawford) Iir. Larson, on Radiore cluims three and
four and Blowout number two, on wach of these did you find
valuable miheral in plsce?

A I% ig valuable mineral.

Q What mineral?
There is some eoppar, gold and silver, but it is not in
paving quantities. I think the record will show that.

Q@ Now, then, I Just want to clear up one thing. This Radiore
Company went broke for reasons inderendent ot these
mining elsi ms, did it not?

A Yes .

@ It was just dve to the gevneral devression, was it not?

A Yes. They were not patented.
Mr. Crawford: I belleve that is all.

RECROSE BXAMINATION

Q@ (By Mr. Prenech) Now, Mr. Larson, the valuavble mineral you
have testified to just now is these values as shown on
this assay ceriificate, protestee's exhioit number one,
is it not? '

A Yes. I thirk there i some others that will come up too.

Mr. ¥rench: That is all.

Mr. Crawford: Call Mr. Reber.

Wherevpon,

LOUIS R. REBEBR, Jr., is called as a witnesc in behalf
of the v»roftestee herein and, having been heretofore duly
sworn, is examined and testifies as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
(By Mr. Pavomr) ©Please state your name for the record/.
A

Louls R, geber, Jr.
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What is your residence, Nr. Reber?

Jerome. |

And’what is your professioﬁ?

Mining geologsite.

How long have you hecm a mining geologist?
Mr. French; We think he is undoubtedly gqualified.
Mrs Pavour: I am going to put it in the record.
dre French: All right.

{By Mr. Pavour) How long have you been & minkng geologisi,
Mr, Reber?

I have been working at it to some extent since 1910.
I finished school work in 1917.

What degrees have you roaceived?
B. 8. in e¢ivil engineering and P. H. B. in Yale University.

And you nave Leem working at your profession since vhen?

Since 1910 intsrmittently; continuously sinece 1917.

And st the present time with what company are you connected?
Phelps Dodge Corporation,
You have acted a3 consnlting-g&ologist,\have you not?

Since 1917 1 have done a certain amount of consulting work,
& portion of my time over that whole period; that is, con-
sulting work for other parties.

And for how long have you been acquainted with the Jerome
Distriet, and by that I mesan the @istrict north snd south
through Jerome.

8ince 1917.

Since 1917. And would you say that you have a knowledge
of thet distriet?

Yos, I nave done more work and been responsible to & con-
siderable extent for the working out of the geclogy of the
district as it iz now known, having done more of that my-
gelf than any other one individual.

In addition to your knowledge of minerology and geology,
wouid you say that you understand the theory and practice
of geophysies?

I have had a good deal to do with geophysical work at one

time and anotpey in Connegy ion with prospecting operations.
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I ¢hink I unc stand the possibilities & = the limitations
of the various methods. I would not attempt to gualify
as n technical expert.

8 You understand the practical application of geophysical
experimentation?

4 I d0.

 And have fthe mining companies been guided and ccunceled to
a large degree over the past twenty years by your recom-
mendations, in that district, do you koow?

A Yes.

¢ And now, Mr. heber, 1 anm going to let you, in your own lang-

 uage, if you will, explain %he sencral geolegical situation
in thet aistrict, ard if you will plesse ovtline what it is,
describe it and tell us what it is, and alsc the bearing 1%
has on general mining sand progpecis of rnining.

Before we do that however, I would like %c ask you about
this map. 1 hand you a mep and ask you what iz thils mape

A This is a part of the geological mep of the Verde District
which ras been prepared under my dlrection over a consider-
sble period of years in connection with the general study
of the geology of the district,.

Q@ it shows the group that we now have under discussion,
does it not?

A It shows that group and it shows the geologleal feéturez in that
part of the district that heve a bearing upon the conditions there

@ In & general way will you explain the distriet.

A I will defins the Verde District as an area showing the miner-
ulizations that &re prevelasnt. In other words, there is smme
evidence of the imporiant copper miner:lizatlon which is re-
sponsible for the vsiusble mires of the district which is de-
tectable every hers and there over & given areu. 1In other
words, that is the extent of the Verde mineralization, and the
extent of that is whst %he prospecior defines us the Verde Pis-
trict.

The minersl ization is of the pre-Cambrian sge, while
there is some sccondary material of o younger formation.

There has been some commercial cre from this secondary

material of & younger formstion. The primary mineralization

is pre-Cambrian, so that a knowledge of the surface 1s confined
to the area in which these formations are exrosed. This area
extends alcong the side of the Verde Valley. The vpper limit of
the exposure of the pre-Cambrian formmtion iz determined by the
rele tive flat lying ocapping of the younger formation tending to
folow ¥hm contour line along the side of the Verde Valley.
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The downehil. limit is determined chief.y by the great
Verde Pault, the displacement of which caused the younger
format ione to occupy the surface on the lower side. 5

In spite &L this limitation as to exposure of pre-Cambrien,
the exposure is exiensiwve enough vnderneath to covar the younger
rocks =2nd the uvver side of the younger rocke, and in consider-
gation of the deepest re-entrance in the upper contour line
boundary we are ahle to determine with & fair degree of approxe
imation the extent ol the mineralized area dotermining the
distriet.

Q Generally &peaking, this distriet that jou a re now talking
bout lies along the east slope of the llingus wouvntain.
Is that right?

A Yes.

& And it extends wore or less in a north énd sovih direction,
does it not?

4 It is somewhat west of uorth and south of east.,

§ Yes., and running through that aistrict is a considerable
favlt which is commonly known ag the Verde Pavlt, which
ybu have just mentionedy
A Yes.
@ And that runs genevrally from the south to the north, does it not?
A Yes, parsleiling the side of the valley.

§ And the pre-Cambrian rock that ie expoced there, i1s that an
old rock & compared with other rocksy

A Yes,

Q@ And it is in the proe-Combrian that we find the mineralization
usually. Is that right?

A Yes.

Is 1t not true that there are very few exposvres of the pre-
Cambrian rock in thés part of the country? That is true,

B isn't it, that the pre-Cambrian is not gernerally close

to the surfage?

&

A 'Wall, going to the south 1t is quite extensive.

@ But up in this district (councel imdicating upon the map)
you find it going south of this?

A Well, I was talking about the Verde liining District as

being defined as & mineralized area. That is all more
or less pre-Cambrian.

Q@ In what are the Unifed Verde and the United Verde Kxtension
Ore bodieg, What kind of iock?
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A Pre-(ambriau.

&

In what are all of the known mines in that district, what
kind ¢f rock? '

A Well, I have alrsady qualified that. There has been some
commercial core in the younger formation. The primary mineral-
ization is entirely confined to the pre-Cambrian rock.

¢ Now, confining ourselves to this exhlbit four, which is your
map, ares the ganeral geologleal conditions in axhilbit ®ur
8imilar to those in Jerome?

4 Yes. But you have eut out a 1little of my general story.
If you will iet me go on-=-

£

Yes. You go shead.

A We nave a more or leas definitely determined area where there
is general evidénce of the copver minerasliization. Then I will
not attempt to go into any detalls of formation bayond the
guartz porphyry and the cther ruck.

Looked at in that way, we have two helts. One is a
cont inuous belt crossing on the north, and further south
we have sncther more discontinuweous bell vhere quarts por-

phyry predominates.

"he two formations I am making & moint of are the in-
trusive quartz porphyry, the Cleopatra porphyry. 3o far as
we oan determine it is &ll the same %type of rock and has
the same relation to mineralization aa the clder sehist
apd greensione included in this gusrtz porohyry. /

, Fow, while we have scattered tracez of this minerali- /
zation practieally everywhere, all of the stronger showings
appéar on or near the shear zores cof belts of schist from
quartz porvhyry. All of the mines which have produced com-
meroial ore, pre-sgminently the nig mines, have this relation
t0 the quartz porphyry:; and the = tudy of the district as

a woole, of all the smsll showings apd even the glight
showingse, brings out the importsnce of this asscelation of
the copper mineralization in the vicinity of quariez porphyry
contzet.

Out of the important mines the United Verde and the
United Verde ixtension are on the norith side of the north
porphyry and the Verde Central is on the opvosite side.

There are & number of places thai have produced mixed
perphyry and older scnists in this zope of wvhich the
Radiore claims are a part.

The Copper Chief ls ia this sswe belt, mors or Jess
on the souta slde of the south pPOrphyry areu.

We £ind, as L have already Qrought oyt, the most import-
ant, from a prospecling snd geological point of view,

showinge with quartz porphyry; that 3s, nct exectly on the.
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contact, some ..e on the contaet but in .. generel vi-
cinity, particularly shear zovnes and schist belts leading
out Trom the shear zones.

@ Now, this gemeral district you have oceen descriving is the
distriet in which we find the mines that yov nave referred
{0 &and mlso the ground that is veing sought in patent in
these proceedings, is it not?

68,

g That is to say, yow would incluae in this district you have
just descrived those pari¢ular claimg designuted as the
Rudiore number three, the Kadlore number Ifour, ~nd the
Blowout number two, would you?

A Yes. Of course,that is only by reference ou the busis of

a precumpiion ss applied to hadlore number Tour. The surface
of the Radiore uumber four is entlrely covered by a Paleozoie
formstion. There is no question bul thet the trend of the narth
side of the southerly porphyry belt csrries it through that
grounds

Q 'There is no doubt in your mind bul that undernesth this Paleo=
goie formstion thnere ig the vnre~Cambrisn formation, is there
Mr. Reber?

.

o B oo B

B & B

Ko.

Nobody would question that, would they?

No, air.

And thet is true over the entire surface of Redlicre numbexr three
and Radiore rumber four and the Blowoul wumber two, i8 it not?
Yes,

Fow, 4id you finish your genersl statement?

Yes,

Kow, ir. Rebar, I would like for you to conline your comments

&3

to exhibit number four, and you might perhaps describe the
coloring and this wmap & little In detall, so that we can gel

a kind of a vackground of it

Well, as Par s the significant features go this wmarcon colored
line represents Cambrian sandstone, which is the lowest form-
ation of the overlying youwnger rock. That limitc the posibility
of showing the primery minorslization on the surfaces

The limit of our pre~Cambrian &resz 1s the Verde Fault
(the witness indicating on the map.)

That is the blue linme on the east?

fhet is the blue line, yes.
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Mr. ¥rench: Mr. Pavour, would it be pu.sible to put a
legend uvpon this?

Mr. Pavour: Yes, we will dc $hut.

A (continuéng) Between those Limites the yellow cclor represents
the Cleopatra quartg porphyry, and the purple color the older
greenstone schist. "The orange color represents the larger
masses of jJuspery cquartz. The green color represents the
United Verde diorite ( the witness indicsting on the map)/
There are some additienal diorites cecvring in there in this
area. This map is very Aargely generslized to bring hximg
ovt the distinetion between vorphyvry and the older schist.

The United Verde diorite is not very siprificant in
reiation to mineralization.

Q Well, there sre ghown vpon this map various claims, are there

not?
A Yes,
Q And what jeve you to say in regerd %o the sres shown on this

map with respect ot the commonly desigrated mineralized zome
of mining area, as distingvished from 4 2gricvltural area?

4 Well, I think whet I define as the area of the Verde District,
where there is some cvideuce of the copper minersliization of
the distriet, I mean evidence of the jaspery quartz and evi-

dence of pyrite; I think there is erncuglgencral evidence of that
mineralization related %o the importsant covper deposits through-
cut the arss 1 have referred to go there is reslily no possible
quesilon a8 Yo that being & mineral arca rather than a agri-
cultural arei. ' :

Q 4nd this particular grourd where we are applying for a patent, .
ie that ground that men have , during the time you nave been
in Jerome, spent mouney on with the expectutions of getting
paying cre bodica?

A Aboolutely.

Q UYhey have spent vest sums of money thereon, heve they not,
1‘{5.1‘ ® i\l.e b (] 'I";’

A Yese
vhey wave explored it from one end to the other, have they not?
A TYos.

€@ 4nd they mave carried on rather extensive mining cperations
a1l through here?

A That is a very indefinite question.
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I meen $0 & 4 that men have worked and _rospected in this
atea, hsve they woty '

Yes.

Wow, I Jjust wanted to e¢liminate the posidility of it being
an agrienltural ares. UNow, let's get down to the mineral-
izetion. If you will, Just describe in Getuil this distriet
in yeur ownd words.

Cf course, the point can ve raised, with this great amount
cf exploration thst hss been dome, a great desl of which
didn't establish operstions, whether that eliminated the
lmportaace of the srea.

in thig particiver sres it is my belief , and 1 have
spent & good deml of my time over many years in studying i%,
this disiriet, with thst pasriicuvlsy idea in mind, as to the
part wot a@dequetly shown where there was justification for
further exploration, s&nd it wus my conciuvsion that this
belt I have explained is a favorsble belt, particularly

the rnorih pert-- that this guartz porphyry still has pos-
gibilities that warrant Durther exploration work.

flow, you nave made 8 shwoing on the mep of & section that |
you heve referred to in your lest remark, 4nd I woulid like ;
to have you describe in detsail that district on this map,

n
80 we mey have it for the record ss to Jjust where it is.

{There is 1o resvonse. )

Let mo put It this way: That distirict to which you have
referred av offeriog poséibilities, does thet include the
ground upon which we ure sseking patent in these proceed-
ings?

Yesa

Yoew., AL vight. JNow, Lr. Reber, will you plesse in your
own werds tell about this district in detull.

Well, there is cne imporitari siruvciural point. 7The trend

\\

of shesring is generally esst-wett in this yart of the district

{(the witness irdicaling uvpon the map). There are extremely
strong showings from which scme commercial ofe has been taken,
more or less to the east of this ground under consideration,
with & very gtrong esst trend continuing into it.

T think perbhaps I had better Jeseribe the copper mineral-
izatiorn 1n %his connection. Ve have messes of typical Jjaspery
guartz alresdy referred to. Wr heve reeses of pyrite with
relatively little coppey, und messes of sulphide snd quartsz
with verying proeporiions of copper besring sulphide. The

non-comweye lul gangue minersls of guartz and the »yrites are more

extensive, somewhat more genersl occurence than the commercial
material. HNevertheless, particularly the iron suiphide is
very Qolinitely a gubgue mineral and an associmte of copprer
bearing wajerial.,
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To a degree w_sh, in my mind, there is n. question but i
that a strong lead of iron sulphide, with perhaps a negli-

gible amount of copper actually visible and determinable, in

a partiocular showing, the vody of the iron sulphide is & part

of the mineralization. It always shows a trace of copper at
least and may pe looked upon as a ledge or lode which one is
Justified in following with & reasonable hope of encduntering
commeroial ore.

The same is true, perhape to somewhat lessor degree, of

 the jaspery quartz. There is no question but that the Jjaspery

gquartz represents a phase of the district's coprer mineralization.
In other words, it 1s rather closely related as to time and source
to the other material that is produced in connection with
mineralization and carrying commercial values.

On this ground the general east-west trend structure and
shearing is quite evident (the witness indicating on the map.)

How, when you say"on this ground” what ground do you refer to,
Jir. Reber?

That part of the Radiore claime in which the pre~Cambrian
sormation is exposed.

That shows on two and three?

Yes, sir.

And it also showe on Blowout number two, does it not?

fes, it also shows on Blowout number two. On Radiore number
two there is more copper shwwing but the same general situation
holds as to the east-west shearing, certain bands of which show
iron oxides, which have been positively interpreted as being
d#eveloped from sulphide formstion.

Did you find on Radiore number theee indications of the
iron sulphides?

There are several such bands in the principal tunnel on the
Radiore number three claim. It is impossible to determine from
this oxidized material what value in copper, gold and silver .
may have been present. Nevertheless, the conclusion is believed |
absolutely sound that these strips of oxydized schist repre-

~sent bands of mineraliged rock formed by minerslization which

is a part of the copper mineralization of the district. That

has been the experience in the district. The association be-
tween the iron sulphide and the copper sulphide is suegik such
that there is a fair assumption that following any strong lead of
iron sulphide it is bound to result in encduntering some copper
mineral and that it offers a reasonable hope of encountering
such mineral in commercial quantities. 4nd the probable con-
tinuity and degree of strangth or sisze of such showing

~required to meke a good prospect or & poor prospect, of course,
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is very lar, ly a matter of opinion, bu there are leads

Showing on this ground, the thorough exploration of which
may be expected to show up appreciable amounts of copper

ore and offer a possibility of commercial amounts.

Do you:find on Radiore number three those indications that
you have Jjust ddscribed, lir. Reber?®

Yes, I was referring specifically to the showing in the tun-
nel on Radiore number three. I belleve that is the most de-
finite and cleancut place. You have bands of schistose

rock with xawitkt realatively abundant iron oxide in which

I believe there is no question but that the bulk of that iron
oxide has been formed from sulphide.

And do you also find that on Radiore number three to a
stronger degree?

There is more copper showing on Radiore number two .

But the two grounds are ldentical in geologicasl conditions,
are they not?

Yes. I don't feel that & small amount of copper ore-- in
other words, the possibility of getting small quantities,

if you had it in more abundance the commercial value would
be more significant because of the fact we know the iron
sulphide mineralization is definitely a part of the mineral-
igation of the district, and that a strong lead of pyrite is
a good prospect to follow in the hope of Pinding commercial
qugntities of copper-bearing masterial, whether or not it

has a certain amount of copper in any particular place.

The pyrite, I don't think you can get away from the
considering of that as associated with the material you
are looking for. :

In other words, as a ledge it is a legitimste pro-
spect for a prospector to locate on. We have plenty of
assays showing traces of copper, gold, and silver, but that
merely confirms the view that this material is part of the
copper mineraligation, snd where you have & belt containing
enough of the mineradization material to justify a hope of
sufficient continuity and extent to that you can follow it

far enough, you have got a chance for finding your commercial
material.

Do you think that those indications there would justify an
ordinary, prudent mining men in prospecting and developing
such ground? Would he be Jjustified in expecting to develop
ore in commercial gquantities?

les.

On Radiore number three and four?

yes.
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If you were .«ploited in the sense of ¢ rying on real

mining operations and spending money there?

YGB. .

And that is true of Blowout number two, is 1%t not?

Yes.

Wow, Mr. Reber there has been some discussion here this morn-
ing in regard to certain geophyslcal experiments that were
carried swt on. Possibly you are more or less familisr with
the fact, that those experiments were carried on down there?
Yes. k
liow, suppose you for the record give us & sort of explanntien,f
if you can, and make it clear for the record just what geo- |
physical experimentation is in regard to exploring for \
minerals. : .
Well, that is a pretty large one.

Well, that is a large question, but what is the theory of
geophys lcal prospecting? :

#ell, there are & number of widely different methods, &

number of which have been used with some success. Perhaps
one of the most successful, as applied to sulphide ore
bodies, is the method the Radiore used on this ground. The
other method which was used on this ground in connection
with the radiore investigation was the torsion balance,
which is not proper there but which may be entitled to some
weight, by the electrical method in which the Radlore
Company places their chief dependence.

However, practically all geophysical methods depend on
the recognition of differences in the physical properties
of the ore material sought and the country rock. I has not
reached the point where different sulphides may be distin-
guished. In most cases they have stfempited to recognize the
existence of sulphide bodies and no light has been obtained
as to whether or not such sulphide bodies may be commercial.

The radiore method depends on the creation of & high
frequency electro-magnetic field crested by & sending appa-
ratus which has an antenna similar to & radio areal. This
electro-magnetic field causes highly connected bodies in
the ground to c¢reate a secondary field and by means of a
detectorx somewhat like the radlom direction finder the
strength and direction of the magnetic field resulting from
the original field produced by the explorers and the second-
ary field, due to presence of conducting mediest bodies in
the ground, is determined and the field strength and direction
of the field, and resultant field is plotted over the
area under investigation.
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Such survey can be wuiite definitely interpreted
to show at least the approximate location of such high-
1y conductive bodies as may exfst. As can be seen from this
description, it does not even prove that such highly con-
ductive bodies are composed of sulphide minerals. However,
sulphide minerals are the most highly conductive materials
which are at alil likely to be present in the area under
investigation.

And experienced operators should be able to be rsason-
able sure as to whether or not such conddctiye bodies as
may be locsted do represent sulphide or some other material
or structure underground.

Q Has geophysical data come %o be regognized among mining
men as of real value?

A Unqguestionably.

And it is bevoming more and more so &s the methods become
perfected and the data becomes more exact?.

A Yes.

Q@ In certain lines the geophysical experimentation has been
~ very definite in connection with the location of oil, has
it not? ,

A Yes. Of course, the seismic method which is entirely
different again is used most satisfactorily.

Q@ That is to say, both are seeking data below the surfuce,
are they not? Which ocan not ve seen with the eye?

4 Yes.

4And both are working upon more or less the same general
principles, are they not, of wave?

A Yes. Host of the methods do have that much in common,
involving wave motions in one way or asnother.

Those are waves set ub by different forces, are they not?

Yes.

Mr. Pavomr: We will offer this and then prove it after-
wards (councel indicating a paper in his hand).

The witness: Those are merely a little further evidence
showing there are traces of copper, gold and silver associated
with iron oxide, showing mineralization. If there is iron
oxide there is a good deal of staining washed from the sand-
stone, but it shows that there is a considerable amount, and
particularly these special bands where the rocks are more
sheared, where there is an abundance of iron oxide, which un-
questionably is the result of sulphide mineralization.
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These éamples are from some of thﬁse streaks , and
they bring out the fact that detectible traces of copper,
gold and silver are nearly always present.

Q Now, Mr. Reber, looking at exhibit mumber four, I eall
your attention %o the so called Copper Chief, as shown
here on this map. What can you tell us about the mineral-
igation there? Was there mineral in that?

A The Copper Chief mine and:.the Equator, or Iron King mine,
are both located on the same ore body or are zone, a large
magsive sulphide which is more or less cut in half by an
arbitrary property line. The Copper Cpief produced
chiefly from Gold and Silver in the oxidized rock, and the
Equstor, or Iron King, produced from both of these.

They treated their ore in a small smwikler smelter,
treating both the oxidized gold and silver ore and the
sulphide copper ore.

Q 4nd what ocan you tell us about the Copper Chief production,
if anything, or the Blue Bell? b }
A | Well, on the Cliff, the Cliff showing was one of the ex-
tremely conspicuous and promising showings responsible
| for the development of the Green lionster Copper Compmy.
' There is not only ledge material, gossan, but actual com-/
mercial ore in place, and there still is, on the ground./

Q@ How, what do you know in regard to this Hooker and Ewing
property over here on the north east side of the Radiore
group (councdl indieating on the map(? Do you know any-
thing ebout the history of those claims? ‘

A Yes. That long tunnel was driven to devliop Jjaspery quartz
masses. They didn't find anything. That may be due to
the faet that they d4idn't get under the most promising
mass on the surface. However, the Jjaspery masses are
more widespread and a re a mwenifestation of the district's
copper minerasligzation. '

Somewhat further té the east on it there are some
showi ngs where a small amount of copper, gold, and silver

ore has been taken out, and these extended to the Blowout
number two.

Q@ I will show you a memorandum and ask you:jf you can identi-

fy % that.
Yes. XInwkat In what way?
What_is that?

o B

This is & 1ist of the samples I took on the Radiore claims.

&

Could you tell us where you took those samples, on which
claims? Were they all taken from one place?
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No. The fisst smx four on this list w._o on the long-
est tunnel on number three.

That is the tunnel on the boundery beiwsen three and
four, is it not?

No. It is this funnel here (the witness indlcating on the
map, exhibit fbur).

The tunnel that is on the west side of number three, or
the east side of number three--- east side of number three
and on number three?

Yes.

low, where did the others, numbers one, two, three, and
four come from? They were taken in the tunnel, were

they not?

Yes.

And where were nmmbers five and six taken?

A HNumber five is a sample of heavy iron oxides occuring in the

limestone above number three.
Whkreabouts on unumber three?

More or less up the hill from that tunnel (the witness
indicating on the map).

I see. And number six was taken from where?

There is something omitted from the description on that.
That was from the tunnel on the other side, the tunnel
near the north east corner of Radiore number three.

Well, then, these were all taken on number three, were
they not?

Yeos.

Mr. Favour: We will offer this in evidence. Also, if we
have not already done so, the map, exhibit four, and the
assays of samples, exhibit number five.

(There being no objection mede, the documents to tendered
are by the notary marked as protestee’s exhibits numbers
four, five, and six, and the same are enclosed herewith.)

(By Mr. Pavour) I show you protesiee’'s exhibit number six.
As I understand it this is a series of six samples which
were taken by you on September 10th, on the Radiore number

three, at different places on that claim. Is that correct,
ib!" @ R@bor? . ) ; A

Yes .

And the description which has been given on page'twb of this
exhibit, those are observations made by you?
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Yes.

And in part the opinion that you have expressed as to the
possiblities on three and four is based on this evidence (
of i4. That is true, that you took this into consideration,
is it not? :

Yos, but I would hardly say that. I mean the fact that any
pyritic mineralization is & part of the mineralization that
you follow in the search for copper ore, & part of the Verde
mineraligation, and that gossan nearly always does show at
lesst traces and coften does not show more thah that. It

is smmething that frequently determines a ledge or lode
which comes under a ¢laim location.

This is a confirmation of that?

Yes. These are usually present where this mineralizatdon
is usually found.

How, have you:omitted anything, Mr. Reber, that you think
would behelpful in this proceeding?

Well, I might say a word about the guestion of a lead of
iron sulphide or a lesd of gossan material, which we can

be fairly sure is developed from iron sulphide without
carrying more than traces of the actual commercisl material
we are looking for. It ig entirely possible to the consider-
ation of the more common case of & quartz vein which may
only have trages of valuable material in it, but which is
known to be a carrier and associate of valuable material.

The fact that such a ledge of gangue material with only a
trace, or traces, of the wvaluable material has been consider-
ed the basis of logitimste claim locations in the past;

and I believe that iron sulphide gangue is such a common
part of the ledge that it has funotioned to Jjust nearly

the extent that a vein of quartz has functioned as deter-
?imﬁ a ledge or lode vhich does Justify a legitimate claim

And that you find in these claims?
Yes.
Mr. Facour: You may'cross~examina.
CROSS BXAMINATION {

(By Mr. French) Mr. Reber, you have just said that these
showings you have found have heen considered a legitimate
foundation for a claim location. Do you mesn also that
they would be sufficient for s patent or to hold locationg

It is my understanding that if the location was wvalid end
met all of the requirements of the mining law that the
matter of patent followed without any further restrictions
or gqualifications or requirements. Now, I don't pretend
to know anything more than that.

\\
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